VALLEY NATIONAL BANCORP DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN 10,000,000 shares of Common Stock, no par value

The Dividend Reinvestment Plan of Valley National Bancorp, or the Plan, provides shareholders of Valley with a convenient, economical and systematic method of purchasing additional shares of the common stock of Valley, no par value, without payment of any brokerage commissions or other charges.

If you are a shareholder of Valley, you may choose to have future cash dividends automatically invested in Valley common stock and while participating in the dividend reinvestment program you may also make voluntary cash payments up to \$100,000 per quarter to purchase additional shares of Valley common stock.

The Plan provides that shares may be purchased for you directly from Valley out of its authorized but unissued or treasury shares, in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. A combination of these methods may be used. The administrator of the Plan, or the Plan Administrator, is American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC.

If the Plan Administrator purchases shares of Valley common stock from us directly, the purchase price for the shares will be their "fair market value," as defined in this prospectus, subject to any discount that we may offer from time to time as determined by our Board of Directors in its discretion. We will receive all of the proceeds of these direct sales. If the Plan Administrator purchases shares of Valley common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, the purchase price for the shares will be the weighted average actual cost (excluding trading expenses paid by us) which the Plan Administrator will pay for the pool of shares purchased that includes your shares. We will not receive any of the proceeds of these sales.

The Plan does not represent a statement of dividend policy or a guarantee of future dividends. Dividends will be within the discretion of our Board of Directors and will be dependent upon various factors, including, without limitation, the future earnings and financial condition of Valley.

This prospectus relates to 10,000,000 authorized and previously unissued or treasury shares of Valley common stock registered for purchase under the Plan.

Valley common stock is traded on The New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "VLY." On June 24, 2009, the closing sale price of Valley common stock was \$10.95 per share.

This prospectus should be retained for future reference.

Investing in Valley common stock involves risks. Please see "Risk Factors" on page 4 of this prospectus.

THE SHARES OFFERED HEREBY ARE NOT SAVINGS ACCOUNTS, DEPOSITS OR OTHER OBLIGATIONS OF A BANK OR DEPOSITORY INSTITUTION AND ARE NOT INSURED BY THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION OR ANY OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY. INVESTMENT IN THESE SHARES, AS WITH ANY INVESTMENT IN COMMON STOCK, INVOLVES INVESTMENT RISK, INCLUDING THE POSSIBLE LOSS OF PRINCIPAL.

NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED OF THESE SECURITIES OR DETERMINED IF THIS PROSPECTUS IS TRUTHFUL OR COMPLETE. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS.	i
HOW TO OBTAIN ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.	i
THE COMPANY	1
PROSPECTUS SUMMARY.	3
RISK FACTORS.	4
CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	4
DESCRIPTION OF THE DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN	5
U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES.	14
USE OF PROCEEDS.	15
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION.	15
LEGAL MATTERS.	
EXPERTS.	
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This document is called a prospectus and is part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, relating to the shares of our common stock offered under the Plan. This prospectus does not include all of the information in the registration statement. The registration statement containing this prospectus, including exhibits to the registration statement, provides additional information about Valley, the Plan, and the securities offered. The registration statement can be read at the SEC website, www.sec.gov, or at the SEC office mentioned under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information."

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus. We have not authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are not making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should assume that the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus is accurate only as of the date on the front cover of this prospectus or the date of the document incorporated by reference, regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus or of any sale of the securities. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.

Unless otherwise mentioned or unless the context requires otherwise, all references in this prospectus to "Valley," "we," "us," "our" or similar references mean Valley National Bancorp and all references to the "Dividend Reinvestment Plan" or the "Plan" mean the Valley National Bancorp Dividend Reinvestment Plan in effect as of June 26, 2009.

HOW TO OBTAIN ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This prospectus incorporates important business and financial information about Valley that is not included in or delivered with this document. You can obtain free copies of this information by writing or calling:

Valley National Bancorp 1455 Valley Road Wayne, New Jersey 07470 Attention: Dianne M. Grenz Telephone: 973-305-3380

THE COMPANY

General

Valley National Bancorp, or Valley, is a New Jersey corporation that was organized in 1983 as a holding company for Valley National Bank. Valley indirectly owns additional subsidiaries through Valley National Bank. Valley is registered as a bank holding company with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System under the Bank Holding Company Act.

As of March 31, 2009, Valley had:

- consolidated assets of \$14.4 billion;
- total deposits of \$9.4 billion;
- total loans of \$9.8 billion; and
- total shareholders' equity of \$1.4 billion.

In addition to Valley's principal subsidiary, Valley National Bank, Valley owns 100% of the voting shares of VNB Capital Trust I and GCB Capital Trust III, both used to issue trust preferred securities.

The mailing address and telephone number of Valley's principal executive offices are:

1455 Valley Road Wayne, New Jersey 07470 (973) 305-8800

Valley National Bank

Valley National Bank is a national banking association chartered in 1927 under the laws of the United States. Currently, Valley National Bank has 195 full-service banking offices located throughout northern and central New Jersey and New York City. The Bank provides a full range of commercial and retail banking services. These services include, but are not limited to, the following: the acceptance of demand, savings and time deposits; extension of consumer, real estate, Small Business Administration loans and other commercial credits; equipment leasing; personal and corporate trust; and pension and fiduciary services.

Valley National Bank's wholly-owned subsidiaries are all included in the consolidated financial statements of Valley.

These subsidiaries include:

- a mortgage servicing company;
- a title insurance agency;
- asset management advisors which are SEC-registered investment advisors;
- an all-line insurance agency offering property and casualty, life and health insurance;
- subsidiaries which hold, maintain and manage investment assets for Valley National Bank;
- a subsidiary which owns and services auto loans;
- a subsidiary which specializes in asset-based lending;

- a subsidiary which offers both commercial equipment leases and financing for general aviation aircraft; and
- a subsidiary specializing in healthcare and commercial equipment leases.

Valley National Bank's subsidiaries also include real estate investment trust subsidiaries which own real estate-related investments and another REIT subsidiary which owns some of the real estate utilized by Valley National Bank and related real estate investments.

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information contained elsewhere in this prospectus. Because it is a summary, it does not contain all of the information that you should consider before investing in our securities. You should read the entire prospectus carefully, including the documents we refer to and incorporate by reference, in order to understand this offering fully. In particular, we incorporate important business and financial information into this prospectus by reference.

This prospectus describes how you can reinvest the dividends you receive on your shares of Valley common stock or purchase shares of Valley common stock pursuant to our Dividend Reinvestment Plan, which we refer to as the Plan. We adopted our original Dividend Reinvestment Plan in 1998 to offer our shareholders an opportunity to purchase additional shares of Valley common stock automatically through the reinvestment of cash dividends. From time to time, we have authorized increases in the number of shares available under the Plan and make other amendments to the Plan to meet the demands of our shareholders. This prospectus describes the Plan in effect as of June 26, 2009.

If you own Valley common stock, directly or indirectly, you are eligible to enroll in the Plan. You may make purchases under the Plan with your cash dividends on some or all of your shares of Valley common stock, and through the Plan's optional cash payment feature. If you are currently participating in the Plan, you do not need to take any action unless you wish to make changes. If you are currently not a participant of the Plan, you may enroll in the Plan by completing an Authorization Form and return it to American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC, the Plan Administrator. The contact information of the Plan Administrator is as follows:

For Transaction Processing

American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC P.O. Box 922 Wall Street Station New York, New York 10269-0560 Attention: Plan Administration Department (877) 681-8028

For Inquiries Regarding Your Account

American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC 6201 15th Avenue Brooklyn, New York 11219-5498 Attention: Shareholder Relations Department (877) 681-8028

If you enroll in the Plan, the Plan Administrator will use the cash dividends on the shares you designate, as well as any optional cash payments you make, to purchase additional shares of Valley common stock. Historically, we pay cash dividends on a quarterly basis. If we do not pay a cash dividend, there will be no investment under the Plan unless you purchase shares through the Plan's optional cash payment feature. Optional cash payment purchases may be made by the Plan Administrator on a daily or weekly basis, depending on whether the shares are purchased directly from Valley or in the open market.

Under the Plan, we may sell you original issue shares, shares that we have reacquired and hold as treasury shares, or shares bought by the Plan administrator in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. We may use a combination of these methods.

If the Plan Administrator purchases shares of Valley common stock from us directly, the purchase price for the shares will be their "fair market value," which is the average of the high and low trading prices of Valley common stock on the date your shares are purchased, as reported on The New York Stock Exchange, subject to any discount that we may offer from time to time as determined by our Board of Directors in its discretion. We will receive all of the proceeds of these direct sales. If the Plan Administrator purchases shares of Valley common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, the purchase price for the shares will be the weighted average actual cost (excluding trading expenses paid by us) which the Plan Administrator will pay for the pool of shares purchased that includes your shares. We will not receive any of the proceeds of these sales.

If you do not choose to enroll in the Plan, Valley will continue to send you cash dividends by check, or by automatic deposit to a bank account you designate, as and when declared.

RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves risks. Before making an investment decision, you should carefully consider the risks described under "Risk Factors" in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, and in our updates to those Risk Factors in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q following the most recent Form 10-K, and in all other information appearing in this prospectus or incorporated by reference into this prospectus. The material risks and uncertainties that management believes affect Valley are described in those documents. In addition to those risk factors, there may be additional risks and uncertainties of which management is not aware or focused on or that management deems immaterial. Our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these risks. The trading price of our securities could decline due to any of these risks, and you may lose all or part of your investment. This prospectus is qualified in its entirety by these risk factors.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus, including the documents incorporated herein by reference, contains forward-looking information about Valley National Bancorp that is intended to be covered by the safe harbor for forward-looking statements provided by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements are statements that are not historical facts. These statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as "believe," "expect," "may," "will," "should," "project," "plan," "seek," "intend," or "anticipate" or the negative thereof or comparable terminology, and include discussions of strategy, financial projections and estimates and their underlying assumptions, statements about the future performance, operations, products and services of Valley and its subsidiaries.

Discussions containing forward-looking statements may be found, among other places, in this prospectus and our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, Current Reports on Form 8-K and Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC, as well as any similar statements contained in future Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or Annual Reports on Form 10-K which are hereby incorporated by reference upon their subsequent filing with the SEC. These forward-looking statements are or will be, as applicable, based largely on our expectations and projections about future events and future trends affecting our business. You should not rely on our forward-looking statements because the matters they describe are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other unpredictable factors, many of which are beyond our control, that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements.

We qualify all our forward-looking statements by these cautionary statements. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this prospectus or the date of the document incorporated by reference. Except as required by applicable laws or regulations, we do not undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. When considering these forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind these risks, uncertainties and other cautionary statements made in this prospectus and the prospectus supplements. You should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statement. You should refer to our periodic and current reports filed with the SEC for specific risks that could cause actual results to be significantly different from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. See "Where You Can Find More Information" below.

DESCRIPTION OF THE DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

The following is a question and answer statement of the provisions of Valley's Dividend Reinvestment Plan.

Purpose

1. What is the purpose of the Plan?

The Plan gives owners of Valley common stock the opportunity to:

- Automatically reinvest the cash dividends on some or all of their shares of Valley common stock in additional shares of Valley common stock.
- Purchase shares of Valley common stock through the Plan's optional cash payment feature.

<u>Advantages</u>

2. What are the advantages of the Plan?

If you participate in the Plan, you will purchase shares of Valley common stock with the cash dividends on some or all of your Valley common stock. Along with automatic dividend reinvestment, the Plan also affords you an easy way to purchase additional shares of Valley common stock, up to a specified limit, with optional cash payments. See Question 16.

There is no fee for enrolling in or reinvesting dividends through the Plan. We will pay all fees, commissions and expenses, including costs of administration, in connection with purchases of our common stock under the Plan. Participants in the Plan will not incur any costs.

The Plan Administrator holds, for safekeeping, all shares of Valley common stock in Plan accounts, free of charge. You may also deposit with the Plan Administrator, for safekeeping, stock certificates for shares registered in your name. There is a one-time fee of \$7.50 for this service. See Question 25.

Administration

3. Who administers the Plan?

Valley has appointed American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC as the Plan Administrator. The Plan Administrator acts as agent for Plan participants. We may choose a new administrator of the Plan at any time.

If you wish to contact the Plan Administrator, you can do so through the following:

Telephone

You can telephone shareholder customer service toll-free at:

1-877-681-8028

1-718-921-8283 (international telephone inquiries)

In Writing

You can write to the Plan Administrator at the following address:

P.O. Box 922 Wall Street Station New York, New York 10269-0560 Attention: Plan Administration Department

4. <u>What are the duties of the Plan Administrator?</u>

The Plan Administrator and its agents perform various administrative duties relating to the Plan. These include:

- Holding shares of Valley common stock for Plan accounts.
- Receiving cash dividend payments for participants.
- Receiving optional cash payments from participants.
- Investing those amounts in shares of Valley common stock.
- Maintaining continuing records of each participant's account.
- Sending statements of account and other notices to participants.
- Advising participants as to all transactions in, and the status of, their accounts.

Participation

5. Who is eligible to participate?

If you own at least one whole share of Valley common stock, you are eligible to participate in the Plan. You may hold the shares:

- In certificate form.
- In book-entry form under the Direct Registration System (DRS).
- In an account established under the Plan.
- In a combination of certificate form and a Plan account.

Valley shareholders may choose to reinvest their cash dividends on all or only a portion of their Valley shares through the Plan. See Question 10.

6. <u>How do I enroll in the Plan?</u>

If you hold shares registered in your name, you may enroll in the Plan by completing, signing and returning an Authorization Form to the Plan Administrator. The Plan Administrator will send you an Authorization Form upon request.

If you do not hold shares registered in your name but instead hold them through a broker, bank or other nominee, you must either become a registered shareholder by having shares transferred into your name or arrange with the record holder to participate in the Plan on your behalf. If you choose the latter, you will not have an account administered by the Plan Administrator; instead, you must deal with and through the record holder.

If you are currently participating in the Plan, you do not need to take any action unless you wish to make changes.

7. <u>When may I enroll in the Plan?</u>

If you own Valley common stock, you may enroll in the Plan at any time. See Question 5.

8. When do I begin participating in the Plan?

Your participation in the Plan will begin when the Plan Administrator receives your completed Authorization Form, or after completion of other arrangements by a record holder satisfactory to Valley and the Plan Administrator.

Once you are enrolled in the Plan, the Plan Administrator will begin reinvesting your cash dividends in shares of Valley common stock following the next dividend payment date that occurs after the date of your enrollment in the Plan. The Plan Administrator will have up to thirty (30) days after such dividend payment date to make purchases of Valley common stock with your cash dividends. However, it will customarily settle the stock purchases within three to five business days after the dividend payment date. Shares can be purchased either in the open market or directly from Valley as directed by Valley. The Plan Administrator may delay any or all purchases beyond the thirty (30) day period if required under federal securities laws. In the unlikely event that, due to market conditions, the Plan Administrator will return the funds to you by check and will not be accountable for its inability to make purchases within the prescribed timeframe.

With respect to optional cash payments with which the Plan Administrator purchases shares of Valley common stock directly from us, the settlement of such purchases will occur on the last business day of the week in which the Plan Administrator receives your payment. If the Plan Administrator receives your payment on the last business day of the week, it will purchase shares with such funds the following week for settlement on the last business day of the following week. See Question 15.

With respect to optional cash payments with which the Plan Administrator purchases shares of Valley common stock in the open market, the Plan Administrator will use its best efforts to purchase the Valley shares on the next business day after the day it receives your payment.

When you enroll in the Plan, you can send in an optional cash payment along with your Authorization Form, if you wish. See Question 15.

There can be no assurances that Valley will declare future dividends or maintain its current dividend levels, and nothing contained in the Plan obligates Valley to declare or pay any dividends or maintain any level of dividends. The Plan does not represent a change in Valley's dividend policy or a guarantee of future dividends, which will continue to be determined by Valley's Board of Directors and will be dependent upon various factors, including, without limitation, the future earnings and financial condition of Valley.

9. What does the enrollment process provide?

By signing and returning the Authorization Form to the Plan Administrator, you will:

- Direct Valley to pay to the Plan Administrator the cash dividends on all or a specified number of shares of Valley common stock registered in your name for reinvestment in additional shares of Valley common stock.
- Authorize the Plan Administrator to reinvest cash dividends on all or a specified number of shares credited to your Plan account in additional shares of Valley common stock.

• Authorize the Plan Administrator to invest any optional cash payments, whether sent in by mail or debited directly from your bank account, in additional shares of Valley common stock.

If you do not specify on the Authorization Form the number of shares of Valley common stock for which cash dividends are to be reinvested under the Plan, the Plan Administrator will establish your account as full dividend reinvestment.

10. <u>Is partial participation possible under the Plan?</u>

Yes. If you elect to participate in the Plan, you may participate with respect to some or all of the shares of Valley common stock registered in your name or held in your Plan account.

When you complete your Authorization Form, you can indicate how many whole shares of your Valley common stock, if any, that you wish to exclude from enrollment in the Plan. You may change this election at any time by notifying the Plan Administrator. To apply to a particular dividend, such a notification must be received by the Plan Administrator prior to the record date for that dividend.

We will continue to pay to you, by check or by automatic deposit to a bank account you designate, the dividends on any shares you exclude from the Plan.

Records

11. What reports will you send me?

As soon as possible after each transaction under the Plan, the Plan Administrator will send you a statement of your Plan account. This statement will show the following information pertaining to shares held in your Plan account:

- The cash dividends paid.
- Any optional cash payments you made.
- The number of shares of Valley common stock purchased.
- The number of shares of Valley common stock you elected to sell, if any.
- The price per share.
- The total shares held in your account.

The statement will also indicate the number of shares registered in your name.

We recommend that you keep your Plan account statements because they will contain information important for income tax purposes. See "U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences."

If you are not a registered shareholder but are a Plan participant through arrangements made for you by a record holder, you should contact the record holder for information on your account.

In addition, the Plan Administrator will send you Valley's annual reports to shareholders, proxy materials, and any other correspondence we send to our shareholders. The Plan Administrator will also send you any supplements to or updates of this prospectus.

Fees

12. Must I pay any fees or expenses under the Plan?

There is currently no fee for participating in the Plan. We will pay all fees, commissions and expenses, including costs of administration, in connection with purchases of Valley common stock under the Plan. There are, however, service charges in connection with sales of shares of Valley common stock held in the Plan. See Question 19.

Purchases

13. <u>How are purchases made, and at what price?</u>

On each date that Valley pays cash dividends, Valley will pay to the Plan Administrator the total amount of dividends payable on all shares of Valley common stock enrolled in the Plan, including shares held in Plan accounts. The Plan Administrator will use this cash, along with any optional cash payments received by the Plan Administrator, to buy shares of Valley common stock for the accounts of Plan participants. See Question 8 with regard to the timing of stock purchases under the Plan.

Valley decides whether the Plan Administrator will buy shares of Valley common stock from Valley, from others, or in a combination of these methods. Subject to regulatory constraints, we decide this each time shares are purchased for your Plan account.

Generally, if the Plan Administrator buys shares of Valley common stock from us, the price of the shares will be their "fair market value," which for purposes of the Plan is the average of the high and low trading prices of Valley common stock on the date your shares are purchased, as reported on The New York Stock Exchange. Although we have no present intention to do so, we may in the future, as determined by our Board of Directors from time to time, sell shares of our common stock to the Plan Administrator at a discount. Our Board of Directors has the discretion to establish, modify or terminate such discount at any time. We will provide you with written notice when such discount for shares purchased from us is established, modified or terminated. This discount, if any, will only be applicable to shares sold by us, and not to shares purchased in the open market.

If the Plan Administrator buys shares of Valley common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, the price of the shares will be the weighted average actual cost (excluding trading expenses paid by us) which the Plan Administrator will pay for the pool of shares purchased that includes your shares. See Question 12. We do not have any power to direct the time or price at which the Plan Administrator buys shares or to select the broker or dealer through or from whom purchases are made.

14. <u>How many shares will be purchased for me?</u>

The Plan Administrator will purchase for each Plan account the number of whole and fractional shares of Valley common stock that equals the cash amount being invested in that account, both from dividend reinvestment and from optional cash payments (if any), divided by the applicable purchase price.

15. <u>Can I make optional cash payments to buy additional shares?</u>

Yes. Plan participants are eligible to make optional cash payments, within the limits described in Question 16 below. The Plan Administrator will apply these optional cash payments toward the purchase of Valley common stock for the account of the Plan participant.

You will receive an optional cash payment form attached to each statement of account you receive. To make an optional cash payment, detach the form from your account statement, fill it out, and include your check, made payable to "American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC", in the desired amount within the limitations outlined in Question 16 below. Mail the properly completed check and form to the Plan Administrator at the address set forth in Question 3. Please include your Plan account number

on any check, and in any other correspondence relating to the Plan. Do not send cash. You may also make an optional cash payment online at www.amstock.com.

No interest will be paid on any optional cash payments held pending investment or return by the Plan Administrator. In the unlikely event that, due to market conditions, the Plan Administrator is unable to invest the funds within thirty (30) days of the date on which the investment in Valley common stock should have been made, the Plan Administrator will return the funds to you by check and will not be accountable for its inability to make purchases within the prescribed timeframe.

If you wish, you can send an optional cash payment by check with your Authorization Form when you enroll in the Plan. Simply complete the "Optional Cash Payment" section of the Authorization Form and include your check, made payable to "American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC", in the desired amount within the limitations outlined in Question 16 below. Do not send cash.

You can also authorize automatic deductions from your bank account. This feature enables you to make an individual investment, or to make ongoing monthly investments, without needing to write a check. If you elect to make ongoing monthly investments, you may change or terminate this election by writing to the Plan Administrator at the address set forth in Question 3. This change or termination must be received by the Plan Administrator at least four business days before the next scheduled debit date in order to apply to that date.

If any check is returned to the Plan Administrator for insufficient funds or for any other reason, or if any automatic debit is rejected, the Plan Administrator will consider the optional cash payment request null and void, and will immediately remove from the participant's account any shares that were purchased based on that check or debit. The Plan Administrator will also be entitled to sell these shares to satisfy any uncollected amounts, including any service charge for the returned or rejected item. If the net proceeds of the sale of these shares are insufficient to satisfy these uncollected amounts, the Plan Administrator can sell additional shares from the participant's account to satisfy the uncollected balance.

16. What are the limitations on making optional cash payments?

Generally, optional cash payments must be at least \$50.00 at any one time, and may not exceed \$100,000.00 per quarter. You do not have to send the same amount each time, and there is no obligation to make an optional cash payment in any month.

We reserve the right to refuse cash payment investments if we believe a Plan participant is attempting to circumvent this limitation or abuse the Plan in any way. See Question 22.

Dividends on Fractional Shares

17. Will you credit me with dividends on fractional shares?

Yes. We will credit dividends on fractional shares to your Plan account. This will be shown on your account statements.

Transfer or Gift of Shares

18. May I transfer shares or make a gift of shares held in the Plan?

Yes. You may transfer ownership of all or part of the shares held in your Plan account, as a gift, private sale or otherwise. The transfer must be in compliance with any applicable laws.

To transfer shares, you must deliver to the Plan Administrator your written instructions, together with any other signed documents the Plan Administrator may require, with "signature guaranteed." A commercial bank, trust company, securities broker-dealer, credit union or savings and loan association that is a member of the Medallion Signature Guarantee Program or other eligible guarantor institution may guarantee signatures. Verification by a Notary Public is not acceptable. You must also pay any taxes that apply to the transfer.

If you wish to transfer any shares, you should contact the Plan Administrator at 1-877-681-8028 for specific requirements and instructions. You may also obtain various transfer forms online at www.amstock.com.

Generally, the Plan Administrator will transfer the shares, by issuance of a stock certificate, through the Direct Registration System (DRS) or the DWAC transaction system, within 7 to 10 business days after receipt of the written request and any other required documents. If you request, the Plan Administrator will make the transfer by crediting the transferred shares to the Plan account of the other person.

If you are not a registered shareholder but are a Plan participant through arrangements made for you by a record holder, you should contact the record holder to transfer any shares purchased on your behalf.

Sale of Shares

19. <u>May I sell shares held in the Plan?</u>

Yes. If you wish to sell all or part of the shares held in your Plan account, you may do so:

- By mailing written instructions to the Plan Administrator; your account statements will contain a form that you can use to do this.
- Over the telephone by calling 1-877-681-8028.

Your sale request will be processed and your shares will, subject to market conditions and other factors, generally be sold within 24 hours of receipt of your request. Please note that the Plan Administrator cannot and does not guarantee the actual sale date or price, nor can it stop or cancel any outstanding sales or issuance requests. All requests are final.

The Plan Administrator may sell your shares any way that it finds reasonable and appropriate. The Plan Administrator may:

- Aggregate shares to be sold on behalf of various Plan participants.
- Sell the shares through a broker of its choosing, including one affiliated with it.
- Sell the shares in a negotiated transaction without a broker, including a sale to Valley.
- Purchase any of the shares on behalf of other Plan participants.

In any sale to Valley or purchase by the Plan Administrator on behalf of Plan accounts of shares being sold on behalf of Plan participants, the purchase price will be the "fair market value" of the shares on the date of the sale. See Question 13 for the definition of "fair market value."

After a sale of your shares, the Plan Administrator will mail you a check for the proceeds of the sale, after deduction of any service charges, and a statement of your account reflecting the transaction. Settlement date will be three business days after your shares have been sold. You will not earn interest on any sales transaction. There is a transaction fee of \$15.00 and a commission of \$0.10 per share payable to the Plan Administrator in connection with the sale of shares.

Alternatively, you may choose to sell your shares through a broker of your choice, in which case you would have to request a share certificate from the Plan Administrator, or have the shares transferred electronically to your broker, prior to such sale. You should contact your broker to initiate the request for those shares that were sold.

If you are not a registered shareholder but are a Plan participant through arrangements made for you by a record holder, you should contact the record holder to sell any shares purchased on your behalf.

20. <u>May I sell shares held outside of the Plan through the Plan?</u>

No. You may not sell shares through the Plan that you hold outside of the Plan. If you deposit with the Plan Administrator shares registered in your name to be held in your Plan account, then you may sell them the same as you may sell any other shares in your Plan account.

Withdrawal or Termination

21. <u>How do I withdraw from, and terminate participation in, the Plan?</u>

You may withdraw from the Plan at any time by mailing written notice of withdrawal to the Plan Administrator. Your account statements will contain a form that you can use to do this. You can also do this over the telephone by calling 1-877-681-8028. You may also visit the Plan Administrator's website at www.amstock.com.

Upon your withdrawal, you may instruct the Plan Administrator to:

- Retain all Plan shares in book-entry form, or
- Issue a certificate for whole Plan shares and sell in the open market any fractional share and pay the proceeds to you, or
- Sell all Plan shares or a specified number of Plan shares in the open market and pay the proceeds to you.

Notification to withdraw from and terminate participation in the Plan must be received by the Plan Administrator three business days prior to the next dividend payment date to receive that dividend in cash. If your request to withdraw from the Plan is received less than three business days prior to the dividend payment date, then that dividend will be reinvested. However, all subsequent dividends will be paid out in cash.

If you are not a registered shareholder but are a Plan participant through arrangements made for you by a record holder, you should contact the record holder to withdraw from the Plan.

22. <u>Can you terminate my participation in the Plan?</u>

Yes. We reserve the right to terminate any person's participation at any time for any reason. This may be to minimize administrative expense, prevent or stop misuse of the Plan, or for other reasons. We may also terminate your account should your account balance fall below one full share.

Upon any termination, the Plan Administrator will mail the former Plan participant a statement indicating your ownership of shares in book-entry form or a stock certificate for the whole shares in the account, together with a check for any fractional share.

23. What happens if I sell or transfer all physical shares registered in my name?

If you sell or transfer all physical shares of Valley common stock registered in your name and held outside the Plan, the Plan Administrator will continue to reinvest the dividends on all shares held in your Plan account that are enrolled in the Plan.

24. <u>Can I re-enter the Plan after withdrawing from it?</u>

Yes. You may enroll in the Plan again at any time by submitting to the Plan Administrator a new Authorization Form, provided you are still a Valley shareholder. Your re-entry will be effective as discussed in Question 8.

Safekeeping Service

25. May I send my stock certificates to the Plan Administrator for safekeeping?

Yes. You may deposit with the Plan Administrator, for safekeeping, stock certificates for shares of Valley common stock registered in your name. This feature of the Plan applies whether or not you are having dividends reinvested under the Plan. There is a one-time fee of \$7.50 to you for safekeeping services.

If you wish to do this, you should complete the appropriate box on the Authorization Form and return it to the Plan Administrator, together with the stock certificates. Do not endorse the stock certificates. Because you bear the risk of loss in sending the stock certificates to the Plan Administrator, you should send them by registered mail, return receipt requested, and properly insured for two percent of market value.

Upon receipt, the Plan Administrator will hold the shares in your Plan account. They will be reregistered in the name of the Plan Administrator or in the name of its nominee.

Plan Amendment or Termination

26. <u>May Valley amend or terminate the Plan?</u>

Yes. While we currently intend to continue the Plan indefinitely, we reserve the right to amend the Plan, including changing the fees associated with the Plan, or terminate the Plan, at any time. We will give written notice of any amendment or termination to each Plan participant at the address which appears on the records of the Plan Administrator.

Other Information

27. <u>How will my shares in the Plan be voted?</u>

You will have the power to vote the shares held in your Plan account. We will send you a proxy statement and a proxy card for any annual or special meeting of shareholders. If you are a registered shareholder, the proxy card will cover both those shares registered in your name and those held in your Plan account. If you are not a registered shareholder, the proxy card will be limited to those shares held in your Plan account.

28. <u>Must I notify the Plan Administrator if I change my address?</u>

Yes. The Plan Administrator will mail your statements of account and any notices to you at your most recent address on its records. Mailing of notices to this address will satisfy any obligation we have to give you notice. Accordingly, you should promptly notify the Plan Administrator of any change in your address.

29. <u>Can I pledge my shares in the Plan as collateral for a loan?</u>

No. You may not pledge shares credited to your Plan account as collateral for a loan or other obligation. If you wish to pledge your shares, you must first request and obtain a stock certificate for the shares issued in your name. To do so, please contact the Plan Administrator.

30. What are the responsibilities of Valley and the Plan Administrator to me?

Valley and the Plan Administrator are not liable to you for any act performed in good faith or for any good faith failure to act. This includes any claim of liability:

- Arising out of failure to terminate a participant's account upon the participant's death or judicially determined incapacity before receipt of written notice of death or incapacity.
- With respect to the prices at which shares of Valley common stock are bought or sold, the times the shares are bought or sold, and the parties from whom the shares are bought or to whom the shares are sold.

31. Who bears the risk of market price fluctuations in the shares in the Plan?

You do. Your investment in shares of Valley common stock under the Plan will be no different from an investment in directly-held shares. You will bear the risk of loss and may realize the benefits of gain from market price changes with respect to all Valley shares held by you in the Plan or otherwise. The shares are not deposits and are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency.

U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

If you receive shares that are issued directly by us through reinvestment of dividends under the Plan, you will be treated as receiving a distribution equal to the fair market value of such shares, calculated as of the date when the shares are credited to your account. If you receive shares that were purchased in the open market, you will be treated as receiving a distribution equal to the amount of the cash dividend that you could have received if you had not participated in the Plan, plus the amount of the purchase price discount, if any. For example, if dividends of \$97 are reinvested under the Plan to acquire shares of our common stock with a fair market value of \$100, the amount of the taxable dividend will be \$100.

If you purchase additional shares under the Plan with optional cash payments, you will be treated as receiving a distribution equal to the discount related to the shares purchased under the Plan. Thus, the amount of the distribution will be the difference between the fair market value of the shares you purchase pursuant to the Plan and the amount that you pay for such shares. For example, if you purchase shares under the optional cash payment portion of the Plan that have a fair market value of \$100 for a purchase price of \$97, the amount of the taxable dividend with respect to these shares will be \$3.

You will receive an annual statement (IRS Form 1099-DIV) from the Plan Administrator indicating the amount of dividend income reported to the Internal Revenue Service.

We will pay on your behalf all brokerage commissions for shares purchased under the Plan, but those payments will constitute additional taxable income to you for income tax purposes.

Generally, under the current tax laws, the dividends that you earn are taxable at a maximum tax rate of 15% if you are an individual. However, for tax years commencing after December 31, 2010, this reduced rate is due to expire and, unless the law reducing the tax rate for "qualifying dividends" is extended, the dividends that you receive subsequent to December 31, 2010 will be taxable at your ordinary income tax rates. Dividends received by corporations under the Plan will be subject to the corporate tax rates applicable to such corporation.

Your tax basis of the shares purchased under the Plan with reinvested dividends will be equal to the amount of the distribution you are treated as receiving, measured by the fair market value of the shares

as of the date when the shares are credited to your account plus any allocable brokerage commissions or processing fees paid by us. Your tax basis of shares you acquire with optional cash payments under the Plan will be equal to the fair market value of the shares as of the date when the shares are credited to your account plus any allocable brokerage commissions or processing fees paid by us.

You will not realize gain or loss for U.S. Federal income tax purposes upon a transfer of shares to your account or the withdrawal of whole shares from your account. You will, however, generally realize gain or loss upon the receipt of cash for a fractional share credited to your account. You will also realize gain or loss when shares are sold. The amount of gain or loss will be the difference between the amount that you receive for the shares sold and your tax basis in the shares. In order to determine the tax basis for shares in your account, you should retain all account statements.

The holding period for common stock purchased through the dividend reinvestment or optional cash payments under the Plan begins on the date following the day on which the shares are credited to your account.

Plan participants who are non-resident aliens or non-U.S. corporations, partnerships or other entities generally are subject to a withholding tax on dividends paid on shares held in the Plan. Dividends paid on shares in accounts, and the proceeds of any sale of shares, may be subject to the "backup withholding" provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. If you fail to furnish a properly completed IRS Form W-9 or its equivalent, or unless you are exempt from the withholding requirements of the Internal Revenue Code, then the Plan Administrator must withhold applicable taxes from the amount of dividends, the proceeds of the sale of a fractional share and the proceeds of any sale of whole shares.

You should consult your tax accountant or personal tax advisor regarding the effects of participation in the Plan on your personal tax situation.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, we expect to use the net proceeds from the sale of offered securities for working capital and other general corporate purposes, including:

- redemption of the Series A Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, issued to the U.S. Department of the Treasury on November 14, 2008 under the Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program;
- refinancing, reduction or repayment of debt;
- investments in Valley National Bank as regulatory capital;
- financing of possible acquisitions;
- expansion of the business; and
- investments at the holding company level.

We may temporarily invest the proceeds in investment-grade securities. We have no current specific plans for the proceeds. The principal reason for the offering is to provide our shareholders with a convenient and automatic way to increase their ownership of Valley common stock.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We will pay all fees, commissions and expenses, including costs of administration, in connection with purchases of our common stock under the Plan. However, if you sell shares of our common stock held

in the Plan through the Plan, you will incur a transaction fee of \$15.00 and a commission of \$0.10 per share payable to the Plan Administrator.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the shares of Valley common stock offered hereby is being passed upon for Valley by Day Pitney LLP, New York, New York.

EXPERTS

The consolidated statement of financial condition of Valley National Bancorp and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 have been incorporated by reference herein, in reliance upon the reports of KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements of Valley appearing in Valley's Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2007, have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in their report thereon, included therein, and incorporated herein by reference. Such consolidated financial statements are incorporated herein by reference in reliance upon such report given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC relating to the securities offered by this prospectus.

We also file reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Our SEC filings are available over the Internet at the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any document we file by visiting the SEC's public reference room in Washington, D.C. The SEC's address in Washington, D.C. is 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information about the public reference room. You may also inspect our SEC reports and other information at The New York Stock Exchange, Inc., 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" the information we file with them, which means:

- incorporated documents are considered part of the prospectus;
- we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents; and
- information that we file with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this prospectus and earlier information incorporated by reference. In the case of a conflict or inconsistency between information contained in this prospectus and information incorporated by reference into this prospectus, you should rely on the information contained in the document that was filed later.

We incorporate by reference the following documents that we have filed with the SEC:

- Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008;
- Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009;
- Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on February 26, 2009, April 24, 2009 (File No. 09769394), May 13, 2009, May 27, 2009 (two), June 3, 2009 and June 9, 2009;
- The definitive proxy statement for our 2009 annual meeting of shareholders; and

• The description of the common stock which is contained in Valley's Registration Statement on Form 8-A including any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description.

We also incorporate by reference each of the following documents that we will file with the SEC after the date of this prospectus (other than, in each case, documents or information deemed to have been furnished, and not filed in accordance with the SEC rules) until this offering is completed:

- reports filed under Sections 13(a) and (c) of the Exchange Act;
- any document filed under Section 14 of the Exchange Act; and
- any reports filed under Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act.

You should rely only on information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We have not authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are not making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus is accurate as of the date of this prospectus only. Our business, financial condition and results of operation may have changed since that date.

To receive a free copy of any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus (other than exhibits, unless they are specifically incorporated by reference in the documents), call or write our Shareholder Relations Department, as follows:

Valley National Bancorp 1455 Valley Road Wayne, New Jersey 07470 Attention: Dianne M. Grenz Telephone: 973-305-3380